
      

PLANNING AND ZONINGPLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION MEETINGCOMMISSION MEETING

JUNE 4, 2024JUNE 4, 2024
6:30 P.M.6:30 P.M.

 
      
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   

 

2. Approval of the Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes of March 5, 2024.
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - There is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments
will be held to an overall time limit of 30 minutes. Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per
person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to another commenter.

  

 

4. PUBLIC HEARING   

 

a. 1880 Industrial Rd. proposed continuance.
 1880 Industrial Rd. proposed continuance.
 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

b. Resolution No. 4, Series 2024, Body by DesignResolution No. 4, Series 2024, Body by Design
 Resolution No. 4, Series 2024, Site Plan review for The VaultProperty, LLC, Terry Tevault,

applicant, Body by Design.
 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

5. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 

a. Montezuma County Subdivision and Re-zoning ApplicationMontezuma County Subdivision and Re-zoning Application
 Planning and Zoning Commission will consider.
 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

b. Building Permits Issued April and May 2024
 Planning and Zoning Commission will consider approving
 

Presenter:Presenter:
 

c. General discussion on Montezuma County planning projects within the City 's one-mile toGeneral discussion on Montezuma County planning projects within the City 's one-mile to
three-mile zones of influence.three-mile zones of influence.

 None
 

Presenter: Presenter: Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Community & Economic Development
 

6. ADJOURNMENT   

 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
June 04, 2024 Agenda Item: 2.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Approval of the Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes of March 5, 2024.
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
P&Z March minutes



         PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2024

1. The meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers at 6:30 p.m., and opened
with the Pledge of Allegiance.  Commissioners present were Chairperson Robert Rime,
Vice Chairperson Katrina Weiss, Jim Skvorc, Emily Waldron and Bob Bright.

Staff present included: Community and Economic Development Director Rachael
Marchbanks, Contract City Planner Nancy Dosdall, City Attorney Patrick Coleman, Public
Works Secretary Karie Beougher, IT Support Aaron Holleman, and Deputy City Clerk
Cheryl Lindquist.

2. Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes of January 16, 2024.

Commissioner Skvorc moved that the minutes for January 16, 2024 be approved.
Vice Chairperson Weiss seconded the motion and the vote was as follows:

Bright              Skvorc Waldron Weiss Rime
Yes Yes Present Yes Yes
Commissioner Waldron was absent from the January 16, 2024 meeting.

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  none

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

a. Resolution No. 2, Series 2024, Conditional Use Permit for Bell Beef Mobile Vending Unit:
Contract City Planner Nancy Dosdall presented the request from Kasey Bell of Bell Beef
for a Conditional Use Permit to park his mobile vending unit on property located at 145 E.
Main St., owned by 145 E. Main St. Trust. It will be a temporary set-up from 2:00 PM to
6:00 PM, Tuesday thru Thursday, year around. This is the first request for a mobile vendor
in the Central Business District under the revised code allowing vending units with a
Conditional Use Permit.

Chairman Rime opened the public hearing.  Dennis Giesler, owner of 145 E. Main St. spoke
about how hard a group of citizens worked for the change in the Land Use Code to allow
the mobile vending units in the CBD and how pleased they are the City is now moving
forward with mobile vending.  He did say it seems like a long process and hopes it gets
easier in the future.  There was no one else to speak so the hearing was closed.

There was discussion by the commissioners about this being the first application since the
code revision and how the process will become easier as more applications are submitted.



The time line of three years before renewal was acceptable, but there were concerns about
the one-year review.  Staff pointed out that if any issues were reported at any time during
the year they would be immediately investigated and it is not up to the applicant to reach
out to the City, the City will be responsible for the review if necessary.

Vice Chairperson Weiss added that if the City would enforce regulations and fees for
business licenses it could reduce the time frame.  She then moved that the Planning and
Zoning Commission approve Resolution No. 2, Series 2024 recommending City Council
to approve the Conditional Use Permit with three conditions:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts
must be satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.

2. The applicant shall comply with all stipulations of the submittal documents.

3. The Conditional Use Permit is valid for a total of three years from the date of approval
with a staff review after one year to ensure there have been no issues or concerns with
the use.

Commissioner Waldron seconded the motion with the vote as follows:

Bright Skvorc Waldron Weiss Rime
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

b. Resolution No. 3, Series 2024, Rezone for a property at TBD (Driscoll), Subdivision:
CORNETTS SUB AMD Lot: 1-5 Block: 6 & E 15FT LOT 6  Subdivision: CORNETTS
SUB AMD Lot: 7-10 Block: 6 B369 P66 B454 P805   from R2, Residential Multi-family
to MH, Residential Manufactured Home District:  The applicant, Casey Spitzer
representing The Spitzer Group, LLC, with written permission from the owner, is
requesting a rezone to MH, Residential Manufactured Housing Zone.  The two districts
have similar use standards and the same density standards.  The major difference is that
the MH District allows for manufactured homes, manufactured home parks and
manufactured home subdivisions while requiring a Conditional Use Permit for multi-
family uses. The applicant states he will be using the property to locate one new
manufactured home on the property closest to Alma to avoid the flood plain.

Chairman Rime opened the public hearing and three neighbors spoke against the rezone.
There were no more speakers so the public hearing was closed.

The Commission discussed the difference between flood plain and wetlands. City
Attorney Coleman reminded the Commissioners that they were here to make a
recommendation to City Council only.

Commissioner Skvorc made a motion to recommend that Council approve the requested
rezone from R2 to MH for the property located at TBD (Driscoll), as submitted by Casey



Spitzer, with written permission from the owner, through P&Z Resolution No. 3, Series
2024 with four findings:

a. The property is adjacent to and accessed through neighborhoods developed and zoned
MH.
   

b. The community will benefit from use of the property by the development of a currently
vacant parcel within City limits.

c. Adequate facilities are available to be extended to serve development for the type and
scope suggested by the proposed zone.

d. The proposal is in conformance with the policies, intents and requirements of the
Cortez Comprehensive Plan.

Commissioner Bright seconded the motion with the vote as follows:

Bright Skvorc Waldron Weiss Rime
Yes Yes No Yes Yes
 

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: none

6. NEW BUSINESS:  none

7. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS:

January and February Permits Issues

8. ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Waldron moved that the meeting be adjourned.
 Vice-Chairperson Weiss seconded the motion and the vote was as follows:

Bright Skvorc Waldron Weiss Rime
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

__________________________________
Robert Rime, Chairperson

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Cheryl Lindquist, Deputy City Clerk



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
June 04, 2024 Agenda Item: 4. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

1880 Industrial Rd. proposed continuance.
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
See Attached.

ISSU ESISSU ES
See Attached.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Staff recommends continuance of the application for the site development plan to July 2, 2024, to allow
additional time for the applicant to prepare a complete application and for independent review of the drainage
report. 

If the Planning and Zoning Commission so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible motion the
Commission could make is as follows:

I make a motion that the Planning and Zoning Commission continue the hearing for the site development plan for
an office/shop building on property located at 1880 Industrial Rd, Cortez, Colorado, in the Industrial (I) zone to
the regular planning commission meeting to be held on July 2, 2024. 
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Staff Report
Site Plan and Drainage



City of Cortez
Community & Economic
Development Dept.
123 Roger Smith Avenue
Cortez, CO 81321

Meeting Date:   June 4, 2024
Project No. PL- LU24-0006

MEMO

TO: Members of the Cortez Planning and Zoning Commission

FROM: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on an Application for a site plan for a 4,000 sq. ft. office/shop structure
to be located at 1880 Industrial Rd., Cortez CO (the “Property”), zoned Industrial.

APPLICANT: 1880 Industrial LLC
OWNER: 1880 Industrial LLC

BACKGROUND
The applicants have submitted a request for site plan review for a new 4,000 sq. ft. office/shop building
located at 1880 Industrial Rd.  Since the submittal, drainage issues have been raised.  City staff is
working with a professional engineer to ensure compliance with all provisions of the Land Use Code.
Additional time is needed to complete this review.

ALTERNATIVES

1. The Commission can recommend that the Council approve application for the site development
plan for the proposed office/shop building on property located at 1880 Industrial Rd., Cortez,
Colorado, in the Industrial (I) zone; or

2. The Commission can recommend denial of the application for the site development plan and
state its reasons; or

3. The Commission can ask for more information and continue the application to a date certain;
or

4. The Commission can recommend that Council approve the application for the site development
plan, and state any conditions it feels would be necessary to ensure compliance with the Land
Use Code.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Alternative “3” above, continuance of the application for the site development plan
to July 2, 2024 to allow additional time for the applicant to prepare a complete application and for
independent review of the drainage report.



If the Planning and Zoning Commission so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible
motion the Commission could make is as follows:

I make a motion that the Planning and Zoning Commission continue the hearing for the site
development plan for an office/shop building on property located at 1880 Industrial Rd, Cortez,
Colorado, in the Industrial (I) zone to the regular planning commission meeting to be held on July
2, 2024.

































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
June 04, 2024 Agenda Item: 4. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Resolution No. 4, Series 2024, Body by DesignResolution No. 4, Series 2024, Body by Design
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
The Vault Property LLC, (Terry Tevault, the "Applicant") is proposing a site plan to construct an addition to the
existing structure located at 1240 Lebanon Rd.  The proposal will double the size of the existing Body by Design
building. 

ISSU ESISSU ES
See Attached.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Staff recommends approval of the application for the site development plan through P&Z Resolution No. 4,
Series 2024, with 5 conditions.
If the Planning and Zoning Commission so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible motion the
Commission could make is as follows:
I make a motion to recommend that the Cortez City Council approve P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2024, a
resolution approving the site development plan for an addition to the existing building on property located at
1240 Lebanon Rd, Cortez, Colorado, in the Industrial (I) zone, with five (5) conditions.

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Staff Report
Resolution No. 4, Series 2024
Documentation



City of Cortez Community &
Economic Development Dept.
123 Roger Smith Avenue
Cortez, CO 81321

Meeting Date: June 4, 2024  Project
No. PL- LU24-0005

MEMO

TO: Members of the Cortez Planning and Zoning Commission

FROM: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on an Application for a site plan for a 4,993 sq. ft. addition to the existing
4,993 sq. ft. private gym (Body by Design) located on property at 1240 Lebanon Rd.,
Cortez CO (the “Property”), zoned Industrial (I).

APPLICANT: Terry Tevault
OWNER: The Vault Property LLC
ATTACHMENTS: P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2024

Plan Set

BACKGROUND
The Vault Property LLC, (Terry Tevault), (the “Applicant”) is proposing a site plan to construct an
addition to the existing structure located at 1240 Lebanon Rd.  The proposal will double the size of the
existing Body by Design building.  The lot is 3.15 acres and currently houses the existing Body by
Design fitness center with associated parking and other improvements. The Property is zoned  Industrial
(I).

The Property is located in the Industrial Park and bounded on two sides by Carpenter Natural Area and two sides
by Industrial zoned properties. The property to the north is zoned Industrial and vacant.  The property
to the west is zoned Industrial, it is owned by the City of Cortez, and it includes the rifle and pistol club.



Site Location



DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Development Standard I Zone Requirement Proposed
Min. lot area (sq. ft.) 10,000 137,214 sq. ft. (3.15 acres)
Min. front yard (ft.) 15’ 167’
Min. side yard (ft) 7’ 20’
Min. rear yard (ft) 7’ 300’ +
Max. lot coverage 50% 7.2%
Min. floor area n/a n/a
Max height (ft) 35’
Parking 33spaces 40 spaces
Landscaping 10% or 13,722 sq. ft. 11,300 landscaped and

75,120 in natural land
cover for a total of 62%

ISSUES

The purpose of the site plan review is to ensure compliance with all regulations and to protect the public
health, safety and welfare, to promote balanced growth, to ensure adequate provision of public services
and facilities and to guide the character of the city. Section 6-14.12 (f) of the Land Use Code (“LUC”)
states:

The Planning Commission in its consideration shall use the standards set forth in Chapter 5 of this code
and shall include paving and layout of streets, alleys and sidewalks, means of ingress and egress,
provisions for drainage, parking spaces, areas designated for landscaping, and other aspects deemed by
the planning commission necessary to consider in the interest of promoting the public health, safety,
order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare.

DISCUSSION

The project as submitted appears to meet all development standards.

Drainage:
The site rises steeply from Lebanon Rd. and significant paved area is proposed.  The applicants will
need to address drainage to the satisfaction of the City.

Comments below and suggested conditions will ensure adequate access, drainage, and all other aspects
to promote the public health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity, and general welfare.



AGENCY REVIEW

GIS Coordinator (Doug Roth)
Body By Design: Flood plain borders the south side of the buildings, however since F.F. elevation
for the expansion is that same as the original building this should not be an issue. 1240 Lebanon
Road address should cover both buildings unless the spaces are separated by a partition, then unit
numbers will need to be assigned.

Cortez Sanitation District (Jim Webb)
The Sanitation District has no issues with this proposal

City Engineer (Kevin Kissler)
 Include site plan showing drainage flow pattern and total runoff volume calculations from

Colorado licensed professional engineer for 100 year intensity 24 hour duration storm event per
Cortez municipal code. A retention structure will be required if total displaced volume equals or
exceeds 0.1 acre foot.

 Show boundaries of AE flood plain on drainage plan. Applicant to demonstrate that total
improvements will result in less than 0.5' rise of 100 year flood elevation. If rise is 0.5' or
greater, a flood plain development permit application must be completed

Floodplain

ALTERNATIVES

1. The Commission can recommend that the Council approve application for the site development
plan for the proposed addition on property located at 1240 Lebanon Rd., Cortez, Colorado, in the
Industrial (I) zone; or

2. The Commission can recommend denial of the application for the site development plan and
state its reasons; or

3. The Commission can ask for more information and table the application, or continue the
application to a date certain; or



4. The Commission can recommend that Council approve the application for the site development
plan, and state any conditions it feels would be necessary to ensure compliance with the Land
Use Code.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Alternative “4” above, approval of the application for the site development plan
through P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2024, with 5 conditions.

If the Planning and Zoning Commission so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible
motion the Commission could make is as follows:

I make a motion to recommend that the Cortez City Council approve P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series
2024, a resolution approving the site development plan for an addition to the existing building on
property located at 1240 Lebanon Rd, Cortez, Colorado, in the Industrial (I) zone, with the
following conditions:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts must be
satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents. Specifically, all
public improvements shall comply with the minimum requirements of the 2009 City of Cortez
Construction Design Standards and Specifications.

2. The appropriate construction drawings and reports for the project, revised as required by the
City Engineer shall be signed and stamped by a Colorado licensed architect or engineer, must
be approved by the Building Official and City Engineer, and a building permit obtained prior to
any construction on the Property.

3. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy the applicant’s engineer shall certify that all
improvements were constructed in conformance with the approved plans.

4. A drainage report meeting CDPHE requirements shall be submitted and approved by the City
Engineer prior to issuance of a building permit for the property.

5. Improvements shall be installed prior to issuances of a Certificate of Occupancy. Irrigation and
maintenance must be provided. In the event that construction of the building and all other
requirements are met prior to the installation of the landscaping, and the Applicant desires a
Certificate of Occupancy, the Applicant may choose to provide a financial surety and obtain a
CO in advance of completing the landscaping improvements. In this event, the Applicant shall
provide an assurance bond, letter of credit, or other financial security agreed to by both parties,
providing a guarantee of installation of the landscaping within a time frame approved by the
City of Cortez.



CITY OF CORTEZ
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. 4, SERIES 2024

A Resolution Recommending Approval of a Site Development Plan for an addition
Located at 1240 Lebanon Rd., Cortez, Colorado, in the Industrial (I) Zoning District

WHEREAS, the owner/applicant The Vault Property LLC (the “Owner/applicant”) has
applied for review of a site development plan for an addition to the existing fitness building to be
located on property at 1240 Lebanon Rd., Cortez, Colorado (the “Property”) and more particularly
described as:

Lot 4 of the Cortez Light Industrial Park per Reception No. 652875

WHEREAS, Land Use Code Section 6.14, Site Plans, indicates that the owner or developer
of a property may request an application of these site plan requirements for development on
property located in the Industrial (I) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the site plan for an office
building for the Property and is recommending approval of the site plan, as evidenced in the
adoption of P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2024; and

WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at its June 4, 2024 meeting,
the Planning and Zoning Commission is recommending conditions of approval for the site plan;
and

WHEREAS, it appears that all requirements of Chapters 5.00 and 6.00 of the City’s Land
Use Code for development of the Property have been or can be met.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF CORTEZ PLANNING AND
ZONING COMMISSION:

THAT, this P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2024, contains recommended conditions of
approval for the site plan on the Property; and

THAT, the site plan and full application for the Property are hereby recommended to the
Cortez City Council for approval, subject to the following conditions to ensure compliance with
the standards in the Cortez Land Use Code for a site development plan:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts
must be satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.
Specifically, all public improvements shall comply with the minimum requirements of
the 2009 City of Cortez Construction Design Standards and Specifications.



2. The appropriate construction drawings and reports for the project, revised as required by
the City Engineer shall be signed and stamped by a Colorado licensed architect or
engineer, must be approved by the Building Official and City Engineer, and a building
permit obtained prior to any construction on the Property.

3. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy the applicant’s engineer shall certify that
all improvements were constructed in conformance with the approved plans.

4. A drainage report meeting CDPHE requirements shall be submitted and approved by the
City Engineer prior to issuance of a building permit for the Property.

5. Improvements shall be installed prior to issuances of a Certificate of Occupancy.
Irrigation and maintenance must be provided. In the event that construction of the
building and all other requirements are met prior to the installation of the landscaping,
and the Applicant desires a Certificate of Occupancy, the Applicant may choose to
provide a financial surety and obtain a CO in advance of completing the landscaping
improvements. In this event, the Applicant shall provide an assurance bond, letter of
credit, or other financial security agreed to by both parties, providing a guarantee of
installation of the landscaping within a time frame approved by the City of Cortez.

AND THAT, the Owner/applicant is to coordinate with City staff to ensure that these
conditions are fully met.

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 4th DAY OF JUNE, 2024

CORTEZ PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

         

___________________________________
Robert Rime, Chairman

ATTEST:

________________________________
Cheryl Lindquist, Deputy City Clerk









































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
June 04, 2024 Agenda Item: 5. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Montezuma County Subdivision and Re-zoning ApplicationMontezuma County Subdivision and Re-zoning Application
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
See Attached

ISSU ESISSU ES
See Attached

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Staff recommends that the Commission state any concerns and request comments be forwarded to the County if
so desired.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Staff Report
Documentation



City of Cortez Planning
and Building
123 Roger Smith Avenue
Cortez, CO 81321

Meeting Date:  June 4,
2024

MEMO

TO: Members of the Cortez Planning and Zoning Commission

FROM: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner

SUBJECT: County Development- Review of a proposed 2 lot moderate subdivision within the 1-
Mile Area of Influence

ATTACHMENTS:  County Application Packet Request for a proposed 2 Lot Moderate Subdivision
& AR3-9 Rezoning Application, submitted by David Kimble & Falena Hunter, on
property located at TBD Road H, Cortez, CO, consisting of 14.72 acres, more or less,
located south of Road H, east of Road 25, situated in Section 2 Township 35N, Range
16W, N.M.P.M.

BACKGROUND
The Applicants propose to subdivide a 3+ acre parcel from a 14.72 acre parcel for a family member.

The property is located within the 1-Mile Area of Influence along County Road H.  County Road H is
not within the boundaries of the Master Street Plan.

The Montezuma County Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing for this permit on
June 13, 2024.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Commission state any concerns and request comments be forwarded to the
County if so desired.



 
 

            Montezuma County Planning Department         
109 West Main, Room 270 

      Cortez, CO 81321 
        (970) 565-2801 

                (970) 565-3420 Fax 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
MONTEZUMA COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Montezuma County Planning and Zoning Commission will 
hold a Public Hearing for review and determination of a proposed 2 Lot Moderate 
Subdivision & AR3-9 Rezoning Application, submitted by David Kimble & Falena Hunter, 
on property located at TBD Road H, Cortez, CO, consisting of 14.72 acres, more or less, 
located south of Road H, east of Road 25, situated in Section 2 Township 35N, Range 
16W, N.M.P.M. The hearing will be held Thursday, June 13, 2024 at 6:00pm, 
Commissioner’s Hearing Room, Montezuma County Administrative Offices, 109 W. Main, 
Cortez, CO. Interested persons may attend and give input. Information may be obtained 
from the Planning Office on-line service at https://co-montezuma-
co.smartgovcommunity.com/Public/Home; you may also contact the Planning Dept. at 
(970) 565-2801 with questions.   
 
Dated this 23rd day of April, 2024 
 
/s/ Kim Percell, Clerk, 
Board of County Commissioners 
Montezuma County, CO 
 
Published in the Cortez Journal on Wednesday, May 29, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 

https://co-montezuma-co.smartgovcommunity.com/Public/Home
https://co-montezuma-co.smartgovcommunity.com/Public/Home


Page 1 of 4 

 

Application Date:     4/17/2024                Planning Commission Meeting Date:     6/13/2024 

(All dates are subject to proper completion of submittals in preparation for the public hearing process.) 

 

MONTEZUMA COUNTY SUBDIVISION AND RE-ZONING APPLICATION 
This application is intended to give pertinent information to the Planning Department of Montezuma County for 
the purpose of determining the review procedure for a proposed zoning request. Nothing in this application is 
intended to abrogate any policy, design guideline, or standard as set forth in the Montezuma County Land Use 
Code, Amended November 17, 2020, Resolution No. 21-2020. 
 
An applicant may pick up a hard copy of the Montezuma County Land Use Code for $10.00 in office or go 

online for a free copy. We encourage all applicants to get a copy of the Land Use Code. 

 

 
The applicant shall submit sufficient copies of a pre-sketch plan which shows the general location of the 
development in sufficient detail to evaluate the relationship between the development and the physical features 
of the land and abutting lands. See Chapter 5: Section 3: 5302 or see the Subdivision and Rezoning Checklist. 

Applicant Information 

Applicant Name(s):  Davie Kimble & Falena Hunter 

Mailing Address:   7590 road 25 Cortez Colorado 81321 

Phone Number:    970-759-3544 

Email Address:    davidkimble@live.com 

Agent Information 

Agent(s): Phone Number: 

Email Address: 

(If the applicant is not the owner then evidence that the owner is aware of and consents to the filing of this application must be provided 
in writing before the application will be accepted.) 

Proposed Development Information 

Current Zoning:     AR10-34 Requested Zoning:    AR3-9 

Number of Lots Proposed:   2 Total Acres:   14.72+/- 

Brief Description of Proposed Land Use: The applicant proposes to create a 2 Lot Moderate subdivision 
consisting of one 3+ acre parcel, for their daughter, and one 11.72+/- acre parcel.  

Parcel I.D. Number:   563702100023 

Property Address:   TBD Road H, Cortez, CO  

Legal Description of Property Section:  2 Township:   35N Range:  16W 

Surrounding Property Information 

Brief Description of Adjacent Land Uses: The surrounding properties consist of agricultural and residential 
uses, along with commercial and industrial uses, with South Forty Golf Course to the west and Countryside 
Disposal to the east.  

Number of Lots:  2 Average Acreage Per Lot:   Total Acres:   14.72+/- 



Page 2 of 5 

MONTEZUMA COUNTY SUBDIVISION AND RE-ZONING CHECKLIST 
 

Pre-Sketch Plan 

X Location of proposed development areas upon the site 

X Total Acreage 

X Abutting land uses, zoning designations, abutting land owners’ names and addresses 

X Existing roads, streets, and highways 

X Major physical features including structures, buildings, boundary fencing, irrigation ditches and 
pipelines, utilities, topography, drainage, wetlands, noxious weed infestations and location of natural 
hazards 

 

Septic 

Existing Infrastructure: □Yes x No  

Septic Permit Information Attached: □Yes □ No x In Progress 

Other: The property is currently vacant  

Copies of permits for existing systems are required. Installation of new systems will require permitting through the 
Sanitation Department. An Engineer will determine the type of septic system. 

 
Rural Water 

Existing Infrastructure: □Yes x No  

Copy of Existing Tap Certificate: □Yes x No □Not applicable 

Service provided by:  Montezuma Water Company. This property is currently vacant. Applicants spoke to 
manager and water tap is available. Montezuma Water Company has a 4” mainline on the south side of 
Road H. Montezuma Water Company currently does not provide water to the above-mentioned property 
but does have water available for a 5/8” residential service. 

Letter Attached: □Yes x No  

Service available for _1__ additional residential use(s). 

 

Access - Montezuma County 

Copy of Current Driveway/Access Permit from Montezuma County Road Department: 

x Yes □No □In Progress 

Access permit can service up to ___ residential uses.     Date on Permit: _____________ 

Interior Road Anticipated: □Yes □No  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



Page 3 of 4 

Access - CDOT 

CDOT Access/Permit: Any development that will require a direct access off any highway shall require 
permitting through CDOT 

Required: □Yes x No If yes, highway:____________________ 

 

Utilities and Easements 

Electric: x Empire Electric □Other:___________________ 

Telephone: □CenturyTel □CenturyLink □Farmers x Other:_________ 
Gas Source: x Atmos Energy □Propane □Other:___________________ 
    

Irrigation Water 

Irrigation Water: □Yes x No 

If yes, provided by: ____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Covenants 

Covenants Attached: □Yes x No 

If yes: □Draft □Final Pages:___________________ 

Recording Fee: $13.00 for the first page and $5.00 each additional page. Per County Land Use Code, minimum 
Covenants will be required for this project. Additions to the minimum covenants may be done by the 
Applicant, but subtractions cannot be made. The Applicant will be drafting covenants as the permitting 
process continues. 

 

Fire Mitigation Plan 

Is the property located in an area identified on the A or B Community at Risk Map, or other areas that fall 
outside of the A or B Zone that have native vegetative cover deemed to be a wildfire risk:  

□Yes, requires a Comprehensive Wildfire Mitigation Plan: 

□Attached □In Progress 
Wildfire Adapted Partnership stated this parcel does not need a wildfire mitigation plan as it is surrounded 
by low-fuel agricultural fields and has immediate access to a main road for emergency egress. 
x No, Waiver recommended by Wildfire Adapted Partnership: 

□Submittal of Affidavit with directional photos: □Attached □In Progress 
   

Weed Plan 

Weed Plan: □Attached x In Progress 

Noxious weeds will need to be controlled by the property owner or a weed control company whenever necessary, 

in coordination with Montezuma County Natural Resources Department 

□No, Waiver Granted by Planning Department Staff 











 Property Owner Mailing Address Physical Address Zone Acres 

1 Valarie & Dennis 

Giesler 

25401 Road H, Cortez, 

CO 81321 

25401 Road H, Cortez, 

CO 81321 

AR3-9 6.24+/- 

2 Maness Family 

Farm, LLC 

South Forty Driving 

Range, 25080 Road H, 

Cortez, CO 81321 

25080 Road H, Cortez, 

CO 81321 

A80+ 177.29+/- 

3 Colorado  

Haymakers, Inc. 

25617 Road G, Cortez, 

CO 81321 

25616 Road H, Cortez, 

CO 81321 

AGZ 20.92+/- 

4 Herman & Kimmi 

Rosas 

25582 Rod H, Cortez, CO 

81321 

25582 Rod H, Cortez, 

CO 81321 

INDLZ 4.13+/- 

5  Bestop Properties, 

LLC 

Tuffy Security Products, 

333 Centennial Parkway, 

Ste B, Louisville, CO 

80027-1269 

25733 Road H, Cortez, 

CO 81321 

INDHZ 40+/- 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
June 04, 2024 Agenda Item: 5. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Building Permits Issued April and May 2024
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
See Attached

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Commissioners will review for approval.



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
June 04, 2024 Agenda Item: 5. c.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

General discussion on Montezuma County planning projects within the City's one-mileGeneral discussion on Montezuma County planning projects within the City's one-mile
to three-mile zones of influence.to three-mile zones of influence.
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
See attached IGA

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Advise which projects to bring to the Planning and Zoning Commission for discussion

A ttachmentsA ttachments
IGA Montezuma County




















	Agenda
	AI 1138 Planning & Zoning Commission March 5, 2024 minutes
	       ATT_PandZ March minutes
	AI 1142 1880 Industrial Rd
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Site Plan and Drainage
	Le Pew documentation
	Le Pew Documents
	thompson
	thompson 2

	1880000

	inspect

	AI 1143 Resolution No. 4, Series 2024
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Resolution No. 4, Series 2024
	       ATT_Documentation
	tevault 2
	tevault

	AI 1140 Montezuma County Project, Kimble
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Documentation
	AI 1141 Building Permits issued April and May 2024
	AI 1144 General discussion on Montezuma County planning projects
	       ATT_IGA Montezuma County

